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UNITED STATES v
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James Moss, President
Tulsa Gamma Ray, Inc.
1127 South Lewis Avenue
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74104

RE: TULSA GAMMA RAY, INC.
Docket No. 30-12319 = &IV~
License No, 35-17178-01

Dear Mr. Moss:

Enclosed please find a copy of the Atomic Safety and Licensing
Board's opinion in Advanced Medical Systems, Inc., LBP~-91-09, dated
March 19, 1991.

In my opinion this decision impacts directly upon your case on the
issues of aggregation to severity level III and the amount of the
penalty. I refer you specifically to pages 26~32 of the enclosed
opinion. This is to advise you that I will be asking the Board in
this case to follow the decision in Advanced Medical Systems, Inc.,
on those two issues.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not
hesitate to contact me,

Thank you for your courtesies in this matter.

Sincerely,
| i : ,-’ /«»7,“

A

/. (
Susan L. Uttal
Attorney, Office of the
General Counsel
Enclosure: As stated

cc: Service List

9507



i’ fﬂaw /{“‘ﬁw

$101068
LBP-91-09

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD
Before Administrative Judges:
Robert M. Lazo, Chairman

Harry Forenman
Ernest E. Hill

Docket No. 30=160585=«Civp
In the Matter of
ASLBP No. 89-592-02~Civp
ADVANCED MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC.
One Factory Row (Civil Penalty)
Geneva, Ohio 44041
March 19, 1991

MEMORANDUH AND ORDER

aff Motion for Summary
D-Lmu-ﬁm—md_hmumw

I.

In this enforcenent action proceeding, the NRC Staff
comes before the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board seeking a
summary end to litigation concerning a civil penalty imposed
on Advanced Medical Systems, Inc. ("AMS") of Geneva, Ohio,
for alleged license violations occurring in late 1984. As a
result of investigations conducted by the staff of the

Nuclear Regulatory Commission, the Director of the Office of




and Enforcement issued a Nat::el in June of 198¢
concluded that four regulatory and license condition
viclaticens had occurred, together constituting a single
Severity Level III violation under Commission policy
.

considerations., AB a result of further investigations,

Deputy Executive Director for Nuclear Materials Safety,
Safeguards, and Operational Support issued an Order Imposing

Y vy

ivil Penalties in the amount of $6,250 against AMS in May

s nds. 3
1989,

comes before us seeking three independent
that there are no factual disputes
2) that were violations of
license conditions; an
‘rectly interpreted Commission policy
5@ the Severity Level III fine.
lolations are as follows:
recelved a whole body dose of 2.9
This dose

one and one

‘Advanced Medical Systems, Violation
and Proposed Imposition of Civil P ] . June 28, 1985.

Genesal Statement of P Yy Procedure for NRC
Enforcement Actions, 10 C.F.R. ! . 2, Appendix C.

‘Advanced Medical Syst ) Order Imposing Civil
Monetary Penalties, May 30 ) B (S 'ed. Reg. 24433,

% e e o "
June 1989) .

/




gquarter rem per calendar guarter because conditions provided
in 10 C.F.R. § 20.101(b) which would permit a greater
occupational dose were not applicable;

2) On November 6 and 21, 1984, inadeguate radiation
surveys of the Licensee's hot cell were conducted prior to
entry of the cell by AMS enmployees. The Licensee's method
of surveying the hot cell viclated 10 C.F.R., § 20,201(b);

J) On the afternocon of November 21, 1984, two AMS
employees failed to read their dosimeters at intervals

1slstent with the anticipated dose rate they would receive
while working in the hot cell. This failure viclates
condition 16 of the AMS license which references the AMS
"Radiation Safety Procedures Manual, ISP~1," dated July
1983, Secticn 7.2.¢.; and
The dosimeters used by the two individuals who
on November 6 and 21, 1984, had not

‘ated for more than 180 days. The failure t¢

~

calibrate dosimeters violates the AMS License Condition 16

which references Section E of the AMS application, which

requires dosimeters to be calibrated at intervals of 180

days or less or before first use, if longer than 180 days

since last calibration.
I1I.
In order for the Staff to prevail, it must first
demonstrate that there are no material factual issues

remaining in the case. The Commission's Rules of Practice

Ll S




provide for summary disposition of a case where the
statements of the parties in affidavits and other filings
Show there is no genuine issues of material fact.® If there
are no material facts in dispute, the Board may rule for the
moving party as a matter of law.

The party moving for summary disposition is required by
Commission regulaticns to annex to the motion a separate,
short and concise statement of the material facts as to
which the moving party contands that there is no genuine
issue to be heard.® The party opposing the motion is
reguired by the same regulations to annex to any answver a
separate, short, and concise statement of the material facts

a8 to which it is contended there exists a genuine i1ssue to

.~

be heard.® All material facts set forth in the statenment

required to be served by the moving party will be deemed to
admitted unless ¢ roverted by the statement required to
. 7
»eérved by the oppo: g party. A party opposing th

the mere allegations or denials of

1ts answer by affidavits or as otherwise

.R. § 2.749(4).

C.F.R. § 2.74%(a); Dairvl 13 _Power Cooperative
e Bolling Water Reactor), LBP-82-5B, 16 NRC 812, %3

O
A




Provicves by regulation must set forth specific facts showing

that there 1s a genuine issue of fact.®

The burden of proof with respect of summary disposition
is upon the movant who must demonstrate the absence of any

genuine issue of material fact.? The record and affidavits
supporting and cpposing the motion must be viewed in the
light most favorable to the party opposing the motion.
The opposing party need not show that it would prevail on

the i1ssues but only that there are genuine 1ssues to be

)

tried.?! when a proper showing for summary dispositicn has

been made by the movant, the party oppesing the motion must

aver specific facts in rebuttal., Where the movant has
satisfied its initial burden and has supported its motion by
affidavit, the opposing party must proffer countering

evidential material or an affidavit explaining why it 1is

impractical

®14.; Texas Utili ,_Generating Company (Comanche Peak
' itation), LBP=82-17, 15 NRC 593, 595-96
1982) .

*Alabama Power Company (Joseph M. Farley Nuclear Plant,
Units 1 and 2), ALAB-182, 7 AEC 210, 217 (1974).

O 1 ~ v 1 ‘M y ' { ron

see Public Service Company of New Hampshire (Seabrosk
tation, Units 1 and 2), LBP=74=36, 7 AEC 877 (1974) and
cases clted therein.

ponwealth Edison Company (Braidwood lNuclear Power
Units 1 and 2), LBP-86-12, 23 NRC 414, 418 (1986).
Public Service Company of New Hampshi (Seabrook
ien, Units 1 and 2) 3 , . ‘RC 1170, 1174 .4
‘ ur - a8 nelther
(continued...)




A.
The Staff's Motion sets forth five statements of

material fact about which, the Staff claims, no genuine

1850e exists:

1) An AMS employee received a whole body dose of 2.9

in the fourth quarter of 1984;
2) On November 6 and 21, 1964 surveys of radiation
levels at the door of the hot cell at the AMS facility wvere

the only surveys made to assess the possible exposure of AMS
enployees who worked in the hot cell;

3) The surveys made at the door of the AMS hot cell on

November 6 and 24, 1984 were not adegquate to detect the

radiation level within the hot cell;

4) On November 21, 1984 two AMS employees failed to

read their dosimeters between entries to the hot cell

4
h\

5) Dosinmeters used by two AMS employees on November 6

g o o B |
ana

1, 1984 had not been calibrated for more than 180 days.

li‘,

. sCoOntinued)

attached affidavits to its Answer nor offered explanation as
to why it chose not to do so. Instead, AMS has mounted its
defense by relying on statements made in the transcribed
interviews the Staff has attached to its Motion. Counsel
for AMS 1s not unfamiliar with summary disposition

oY

procedures and the use of affidavits. See Advanced Medical
Systems, Inc. (One Factory Row, Geneva, Ohio 44041), LBP-
90=17, 31 NRC 540 (1990). While this tactic is not in
itself fatal to the AMS cause (gsee Cleveland Electric
Illuminating Company (Perry Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and
) ALAB-443, 6 NRC 741, 752-7%44 (1977)), it provided AMS

\
1

-
i

h little in the way of direct, contradictory evidence to
its effort to establish the existence of genuine 1ssues

i
L*
id
of material fact.
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We will address these factual contentions first,
serlatin, then we will turn to the other issues in this
proceeding.

B,

Contenticon 1. An AMS employee received a whole body
dose of 2.9 rems in the fourth calendar guarter of 1984,

The Staff nmeets its initial burden by offering in
support of its contention a signed letter from Harold Irwin
f Advanced Medical Systems, Inc., dated March 8, 1985, sent
to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Cecmmission in which he states
that an AMS enmployee received a 2,900 millirem exposure
during the month of November, 1984.%? This fact is further
supported by a Radiation Detection Company (Sunnyvale,
California) Dosimetry Report for the month of November, 1984
which shows the AMS employee named in the Irwin letter to
have received 2,900 millirems of radiation during that time
per;od,l‘

AMS does not dispute this statement of material fact in
its Answer. The statement is deemed admitted.'®

Contention 2. On November 6 and 21, 1984 surveys of

radiation levels at the door of the hot cell at the AMS

1
‘JS:aff Motion, attachment 1, Attachment D at 1.

474, at s,

All material facts set forth in the statement
required to be served by the moving party will be deemed to
be admitted unless controverted by the statement required to
be served by the opposing party. 10 C.F.R. §2.749%9(a).




facility were the only surveys made to assess the possible
exposure of AMS employees who worked in the hot cell.
The Staff offers the sworn and transcribed statements
of two individuale present on the cell entries on November €
and 21, "Individual A" and Glenn Sibert, respectively one of
the AMS employees who entered the hot cell and his
supervisor, and a third individual, Howard Irwin, who 18 a
self-described "manager" in the AMS corporate hierarchy.
The three individuals describe the pre~entry procedures
onducted on the two dates 1n guestion As described, one
sample reading was taken by remote sensor on each day to
detect airborne contamination in
‘adiation survey was taken at the cell door each day using a
hand hel ) ion monitor to detect non-alirborne radiation
documents referred to as
time" estimates for
cell were based on ra
cted at the cell door.?'®

The AME Answer counters by stating that preparation for

cell entries "began several days in advancte."19 AMS
Y

ion, Attachment 7 at 13~-l14; Attachment 8 at
and Attachment & at 24.
- - e
l":taff Motion, Attachment 6 at 4; Attachment 8 at 27~
47-48; and Attachment 7 at 24-27.
Attachment at Attachment B.

Answer at 6.




offers statements by Clenn Sibert to support this

agsert )Oh?zo

Prior to going into the cell we alvays
picked and checked the cell for stray
pellets, because the way they were
buying the cobalt it comes in a canister
and wvhen you cut it open it flies 1in
every direction. We had to spend at
least two or three Jdays scanning for
pellets eavery time we went in. . .

With the probe, a Victoreen 500 motct
(we would scan [(the cell) using
manipulators. . . . We gat it as low as
ve could get it with that meter. Then
the rext procedure was to get ready to

q»’ ;h.

Howard Irwin also agrees that remote probe radiation

detection is performed prior to cell entry &s part of the

21

cell decontamination procedures.

The AMS Answver misses the mark. Neither Mr., Sibert nor

Irwin state that the remote sensor was used to assess

possible exposure of AME employees who worked in the hot

*ell on November 6 and 21. They say only that the remote

n
®

nsor was used as part of the pre-entry decontamination

procedures. L Although decontamination would have lowered

Staff Motion, Attachment 8 at 24+-25.

21Ptaff Motion, Attachment 7 at 25-27.

3rwo other points are tangentially significant.

F , Glenn Sibert admitted that the remote probe "could
only survey to a certain point, and then it got to the point
where you had to open up the cell door and stick a meter
in." Staff Moti on, Attachment 8 at 59, Second, Howarc !
Irwin admitted that the remote probe was not calibrated.

aff Motion, Attachment 7 at 26. t appears the remote

be would have been incapable of providing accurate
(continued...)
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the potential radiation risks in the hot cell, it 1is,
itself, immaterial to the Staff's assertion that the cell
door surveys were the only surveys made to assess potential
radiation exposure levels.

By not disputing the Staff's factual statement in its
Answer the Licensee has failed to carry its burden. The
statenment is deemed to be admitted.

Contention 3. The surveys made at the door of the AMS
hot cell on November & and 21, 1984 were not adecquate to
detect the radiation level

As the foundation for this assertion, the Staff
provides the results of the actual dosimeter readings taken

from the hot cell entries conducted on Novenber 6 and 21.

The results demonstrate that the actual exposure readings

were nearly 50% highe on both dates than the anticipated

exposures calculated ©

~ ™
i

y the basis of the door surveys taken

on those cates.

'here is little, if any, merit to the AMS rebuttal.
The AMS Answer makes a series of assertions that skirt but
de not confront the issue presented by the Staff. AMS

point.s to Mr. Sibert's unsupported opinion that the cell

32,

.« sCONtinued)

measurements of potential radiation exposure even if it had
been used. Therefore, whether or not the remote probe was
used becomes immaterial to whether or not a regulatory
violation occurred, as will be discussed, infra.

23Staff Motion, Attachment 1 at 4 and 6.
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door would always have the createst potential for radiation
exposure; to Mr. Sibert's opinion th’t adequate surveys veie
performed; and the assertion that most of the regquired work
leading to exposure would be conducted at the door to the
cell.?® 1In addition, AMS argues that "no evidence was ever
presented to demonstrate that Mr. Sibert's results would
have been different had he done his surveys any
dxrferently."zs
These statements do little to either rebut the Staff's
claim or to establish the existence of a material) fact in
dispute. As AMS admits, on both days the hot cell entries
were made, the only calilbrated radiation readings were ones
conducted at the door of the hot cell by slightly opening
the door and extending a hand held radiation detector into
ell. The Staff has presented direct evidence, in the
AMS reports, that the cell door survey
underestimated actual radiation exposure by 50% on
guestion. AMS has neither challenged those

readings nor offered an explanation for the underestimation.

pNs argues that since the cask containing the cobalt
shipment is of such a substantial size, the employees do not
actually enter the room when they wheel the cask in the hot
cell. Therefore AMS asserts that the door survey 1s
adegquate. However, the November 6 entry entailed replacing
light bulbs and a wall bracket, and the November 21 entry
entailed replacing the frame, table top and trashbag, and
the installation of the sink after the cask had been
removed. Staff Motion, Attachment 1 at 5 and Attachment 9
at 25.

25AHS Answer at
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The Staff has presented unrefuted evidence that the
radlation surveys conducted on November 6 and 21, 1984 wvere
inadequate for the purposes of assessing radiation levels in
the hot cell and AMS is remiss by not countering that
factual assertion in its Ansver. The fact is deemed to be
admitted.

Contention 4. On November 21, 1984 two AMS enmployees
failed to read their dosimeters between entries to the hot
cell.

on November 21, cell door was opened twice =~
once in the morning and e 1 p afternoon. In the
morning, Individuals A and B pus cask containing cobalt-
€0 into the cell. There is no dispute that there occurred
only one cell entry by each individual during the morning.

was closed that norning, Individual A
record the results,®®
he read his dosimeter after leaving
room and says he "probably" told someone
the reading "o habit."?’ There is no evidence that
elther of the dosimeter readings taken in the merning were

ever r‘(-:acorcied."’a

265taff Motion, Attachment 6 at 35-36.

27St’.atf Motion at 26-27.

¥ mile the norning entry plays no part in the dispute
at hand, it 18 instructive in defining the AMS rebuttal
argument.
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In the afterncon, the cell door was again opened.
After Individuals A and B entered the cell to move the cask
out, they had trouble with the device that aids the movement
of the cask. They stepped out of the cell into the
decontamination room and moved behind the cell door to
receive further instructions from Glen Sibert. After
learning how to correct the problem, Individuals A and B
again entered the cell, made the necessary adjustments, and
moved the cask out of the cell. Next, Individual B
reentered the cell to replace the frame and table top.
Individual A then reentered the cell to install the sink and
to replace the trash bag on the c»2ll wall., Both Individual
A and B state that at least three cell entries were made in

the attornoon.”

Both Individual A and B state that each
read his dosimeter only after they exited the
decontamination room when the work was complot.d.’o

AMS counters with three arguments ~-- that only one cell
entry was made in the afternoon; that Josephine Powell,
whose job it was to monitor how long each individual

remained in the cell, requested Individuals A and B to read

their dosimeters through the P.A. system; and that

2’Statt Motion, Attachment € at 20; Attachment 8 at 25.

®statf Motion, Attachment 6 at 20-21, 36; Attachment 8
at 26.



Mr. Sibert remembered Individual A and B checking their
dosimeters and calling out an interim rﬂadmg.’x

The first argument would directly counter the Staff's
asgertion 1f in fact only two cell entries had taken place.

Since both Individuals read their dosimeters after they left

the decontamination room in the morning, and if there was

only one cell entry in the afternoon, technically, an

interim reading would have been taken prior to cell entry.

However, the evidence upon which AMS relies to support this

semantic argument is less than solid.

AMS points to statements made by Glen Sibert to argue

that only two cell entries were made on November 21. In

Mr. Sibert's opinion, a "typical cell procedure" amounted to

"{plush[ing) the container in, unload(ing) it and pull(ing)

1 32

it out of the cell., Just really two [(entries)."® He

epeatedly states that only two entries were made on

November 21. However, this assertion beconmes clearer when

he admits that in his opinion, when the hot cell door is

open, the hot cell and the decontamination room became one

in the same for the purposes of a "cell entry," i.e., if the

door 1s open, stepping out of the hot cell into the

1aMs Answer at corrected page 8.

JZStaff Motion, Attachment 8 at 52-53 and 70.



decontamination room does not mean that you had to "reenter”

the hot cell.33

On the other hand, Mr. Sibert admits that the two AMS
enployees working in the hot cell had to come out and stand
behind the cell door in the decontamination room to receive

instructions when they started to have trouble removing the

container.’® He also admitted that if a person is in the

decortamination room, that person cannot be in the hot

cell.’® More on point, earlier in his interview he directly

~ontradicts his later statements concerning hot cell

ent !".95136

Q. I would like to have your
definition of what constitutes an entry
into the cell as far as time in the
cell. While you're in the
decontamination room, is it after ycu go
into the cell itself?
A, Into the

Decontaminatio .
the cell is different. twe h
decon room and the cell you gt =1/2
feet high density concrete and in the
lab you got regular double doors with
vents.

and
€

-

Sibert's inconsistent statements simply lack
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The AMS arguments alleging that "one minute dosimeter

checks vere requested by Josephine Powell through the P.J).

system" and that "she let them know when to check their

dosimeters"’’ do little to establish whether c¢r not the
dosimeters were actually read prior to cell entry cr at
appropriate intervals during the procedure. AMS has not

offered any affidavit by Ms. Powell stating either that she

made the requests or that she saw the dosimeters being read.

The closest AMS comes to directly challenging the

Staff's statement is an assertion that Mr. Sibert recalled

one of the individuals calling out ar interim dosimete:

reading of 160 millirems during the pxp;odures.l’ However,

this statement by Mr. Sibert also proves different than it

appears on first blush:3?
Q. Do you know if on either event, the

6th or the 21st, they checked their
dosinmeters at the one-minute interval?

A, ll asking them what they
picked | and ==

Q. That would be ==

A. I asked (Individual A) and
[Individual B] and it seems to me, like
they told me, that they picked up 160MR.

Q. Okay, t
- doesn't coi

hat doesn't jive with the =~
nc

cide with the information

T aMs Answer at 8 (corrected page).

3°AHS Answer at corrected page 8.

-
"Staff Motion, Attachment 8 at &




that they recorded. They got about
845MR dosimeter reading.

A. Yes. Is that for the 21ist?

Q. Yes, ve're on the 21st. That's the
date.

A, Well, 845 is their iinal dosinmeter
reading.

Q. Okay, that was at the ~- at the end

of how many entries was that?

A, That would be -+~ their final
dosimeter reading would be at the end of
that work time. Now see, what had to be
done that day, the container had to be
put into the cell. I have to go out of
the cell, or out of the lab, take a
shower, get dressed, come back out to
the cell window to get ready to unload
this convainer.

While I'm getting it unloaded,
these two are in the lab out of the high
radiation area. They are out of the ~-=-
over by the view window where you can
look into the lab, and they have to wait
until I get that container unlcaded
before we make preparations tc take the
container out of the cell.

Q- Okay, s0O you remember them making
how many dosimeter checks during those
intervals?

A. I know one, 160, is what they told
me they picked up, and that's about all
I can remenmber.

Q. Did these individuals that were
working there read their dosimeters at
the times indicated prior to entry and
at times within the work period?

A, The Jdosimeters were read,

Q. Earlier you indicated that you
don't recall seeing them read these
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dosimeters during the work period. Are
You assuning they dia?

A They did read them, You got to
read them through a plastic bag.

Q. Earlier in the interview you

indicated that you don't recall having
seen them do this. You just «=

A. No, I didn’'t see them. Like I
said, I am not awvare -~ 1 can't be a
mother hen to them. Otherwise == I
can't watch every move they make,
because during the course of cobalt
being put away I'm in and out, in and

out.

On the basis of the statements made auring the
investigatory interviews, the 160 millirem reading was one
taken after the twc AMS employees left the decontamination
room in the morning, prior to suiting up again for the
ternoon entries. Both individuals remember reading their
Oslmeters at that time. Individual B stated that he

‘i

called out his dosimeter rwading. Both individuals

stated that they did nnt recad their dosimeters during

ternoon procedures until they left the decontamination

final tlme.‘o AMS has offered no credible

Orhe only other potential eye-witnesses to the hot
cell entries would have been Josephine Powell and who ever
was stationed at the monitoring window timing the entries.
Mr. Sibert never saw the dosineters being read and ANS
falled to offer any affidavits by those persons who would
nave been at the monitoring window instructing that the
dosimeters be read. Indeed, we find it peculiar that
Counsel for AMS did not attach an affidavit from Ms. Powell

A
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evidence to raise a doubt as to the veracity of those

statenents.

Contention 5. Dosimeters used by two AMS employees on

November 6 and 21, 1984 had not been calibrated for more

than 180 days.

The AMS Ansver statas:“

(Tihe standard practice for calibration
of dosimeters was to compare the
dosineter readings with film badge
readings. . . . This practice modified a
1979 procedure which was found to be
unworkable because it yielded a 25%
discrepancy. . . . The NRC has never
been able to produce any evidence that
the dosineters were not in calibration
or that the method of calibration used
in Novenmber, 1%84 was not adequate.

Once again, while the NRC Staff may
dispute whether the calibrations were
acceptable, there is testimony that
calibrations were performed.
Unfortunately, both the Staff and AMS have either nmis-
stated or m_sinterpreted the material fact to be argued.
The gquestion is not whether the dosimeters were calibrated,

because that 1s immaterial to the issue of whether the

dosimeters were calibrated in the manner set forth in the

AMS license agreement.‘2 It is that fact that 1is germane to

¢1AMs Answer at 8-9,
‘2The statement of material fact argued by the Staff
should have more appropriately read: Dosimeters used by two
AMS employees on November 6 and 21, 1984 had not been
calibrated for more than 180 days according to the
(continued...)
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the issue of a license violation. Regardless, the pleadings
and accompanying documents demonstrate that AMS has admitted
deviating from license conditions with regard to the
calibration of the dosimeters used in November 1984.%" The
issue is moot,

C.

We next address whether or not AMS has violated
Commission regulations or conditions which are part of its
own license agreement in order to determine the larger issue
of whether the Director's actions were correct with respect
to the imposition of the monetary penalty against AMS. To
do so, we once again revisit the four vicolations as they are
set forth in the Notice of Violation of June 28, 1985 and
the staff Summary Disposition Motien.

Violation 1. An AMS employee received a whole body
dose of 2.9 rems in the fourth calendar guarter of 1984.
This dose exceeds the 10 C.F.R. § 20.101(a) limit of one and
one quarter rem per calendar quarter. Conditions provided
in 10 C.F.R., § 20.101(b) which permit a greater occupational
dose are not applicable in this situation.

On May 24, 1988, Dr. Seymor Stein, President of AMS,

vrote to the Director, Office of Inspection stating, without

"(...continuod)

smmzmn_tunmmmtmn_m_;m_ms_uum

Ystars Motion, Attachment 3 at 3-4, and Attachment 7
dt 35=37.
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qualification, that “AMS wishes to concede | hat technically
& violation of 10 CFR 20.101(a) did occur."** The Board
finds no reason to disagree.

Vielation 2. On November € and 21, 1964, inadeguate
Surveys at the door of the hot cell at the AMS facility vere
made. This failure to adequately survey a high radiation
area, prior to potential exmosure to humans, violates 10
C.F.R. 20.201(b).

10 C.F.R. 20.201(a) requires that each licensee make
SuUch surveys as may be necessary to comply with all sections
of 10 “.F.R. Part 20. As defined in 10 C.F.R. § 20.201(a),
"survey means an eva'uation of the radiation hazards
incident to the production, use, release, disposal, or
presence o! radioactive materials or other scurces of
radiation under a specific set of conditions. Mr. Sibert
stated that the only survey of the radiation level in the

hot cell was the one taken at the door to the cell and the

“dstart Motion, Attachment 4. 10 C.F.R. § 20.101(a)
limits the whole body dose of an individurl in a restricted
area to one and one quarter rems per calendar guarter,
except as provided by 10 C.F.R. § 20.101(b)., The technical
vielation involved AMS's failure to document Individual B's
past exposure levels under § 20,101(b) (1) prior to his entry
into the hot cell in November. The only written record of
“ndividual B's exposure history extant was signed in January
1985 -~ after Individual B had received a 2.9 rem dose of
radicactivity -~ and post-dated to September 1984 to make it
appear that requlations had been complied with., gee AMS
Answer at 4.
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air sample to determine airborne contamination.'® Howvard
Irwin also stated that the in-cell monitor vas only used for
decontamination and not to assess the smount of time workers
could stay in the hot cell.*® NMoreover, the in-cell meniter
was not calibrated during the November entries.'’ when a
comparison it made between the exposure estimate based on
the cell door survey and the actual dose received by the two
enployees, the calculation from the cell door survey
underestimates the actual exposure by 50%.%"  As we have
already noted, a radiation survey with & margin of error of
0% is not a reliable Survey capable of protecting health or
promoting safety in any stretch of the imagination. We can
find no fault with the Director's decision pertaining to
this vieolation of 10 C.F.R, §§ 20.201(a) and (b).

Violation 3. On November 21, 1984, two AMS enployees
failed to read their dosimeters at intervals consistent with
the anticipated dose rate. This failure violates Condi*ion

16 of the AMS license which references the AMS "Radiation

“starf Motion, Attachment 8 at 25 and Attachment € at
12=18, 19.

starf Motion, Attachment 7 at 25-27.
“Tstatf Motion, Attachment 7 at 26.

Ystaff Motion, Attachment 1 at 4-6. AMS personnel
should have become aware of the discrepancy between the
estimated and actual exposure after the November 6 entry.
However, no corrections were made, based on the information
gathered on November 6, prior to the November 21 entry.



Safety Procedures Manual, IS8P+«)1," dated July 1583, Section

License Condition No. 16 requires that licensed
nmaterial be possessed and uscd in accordance with
statenents, representations, and procedures contained in
"Fadiation Safety Procedures Manual, ISP~1% dated July 1983,
Section 7.2.¢., "Personnel Monitoring" of ISP~1 states, "Work

dOse areas wvill be preceded by a survey wvith

priate monltoring egquipnent and an estimated total

Jnulated exposure deternmined. v + The pencil type
iosineters will be read at intervals consistent with the

cipated dose rate to determine that the actual exposure

ot greater than the anticipated eupfsurc.""

There is no dispute that on November 21, 1984, twc

dJuals worked in the licens2e's hot cell, an area vhere

adiation levels «kat.so The licensee estinated a

49, ; .
fhe Staff's reliance upon supporting documents as the

b for license requirements is consistent with the Atomic
y Act, Commission regulations and past Commission
. 288 Atomic Energy Act of 1954, Section 182(a), 42
$ 2232 (Commission authcrity to require supplemental
mation from license applicant and to incorporate such
© license); 10 C.F.R., § 30.34; 10 C.F.R. § 35.26(Db);
ramble to NRC Form 374 (5-84). Also, in late 1986, the
ommission published notice in the Federal Register of its
revision to 10 C,F.R. Parts 130-35, Final Rule, 51 Fed. Reg.
36,932 (1986), In that notice, the Commission gives a clear
account of its regulatory program and licensing practices
regarding bynroduct material licenses of the type issued to
AMS See 1d. at 36,933,

50,

y A
ice

Y
v
.

n April 25, 1985, the license¢ made a survey of the
nterior of the hot cell utilizing a '7ictoreen 500
(continued...)




work exposure for the day to be approximately 750 millirens
and established one minute as the "nmaxipum ailowvable
exposure time before checking dosxmotora."l When the twvo
individuals who entered the hot cell read their dosineters
for the first time that afternoon (upon exiting the
decontamination room), woth 1 rem dosineteis were off-
scale, Individual A hal received a 1625 millirem dose and
Individval B had received a 1600 millirem dose for that day,
more than twice the est.nmated dose for each person Had the
josimeters been read corsistent with anticipated dose rates,
at appreoximately one minuce, the overexposures should not

|8

have occurred.
AMS has produced no eviderce to support a clain that
dosimeters vere read consistent wiih anticipated dose rates.

The two individuals who entered the cell have both stated

that they did not read their dosimeters until the end of the

There 1is sufficient, unrebutted evidence to find

f License Condition 16,

on 4. On Novemnber 6 and 21, 1984, the licensee

individuals to enter a high radiation area

0. . .continued)
Electrometer with a model 550-6A high energy probe. The
survey showed radiation levels inside the cell as high as 81
rems per hour. This amount was approximately four times
higher than the radiation level used by the licensee when
calculating cell stay times during November.

*lstaff Motion, Attachment 1, Attachnent C at page




equipped with dosineters that had not been calibrated within
& 180 day tine period prior to their use.

License Condition No. 16 requires that licensed
material be possessed and used in accordance with
statements, representations, and procedures contained in the
application received July 16, 1979, and in certain
referenced documents. Schedule E of the application states
that dosipeters will be calibrated at intervals of 180 days

@88 Or before first use if longer than 180 days since
last alibration, 1 icensee 1s required, in accordance

the provisions ¢ icense Condition No. 16,

adN

librate dosimeters by using a calibrated (cobalt)
diation source.®® Both Dr. Stein and Howard Irwin
knowledged that dosimeter calibration procedures at AMS
voived calibrating dosimeters by comparison with film
adge readings instead of the procedure found in the AMS

icense agreement., "

AMS 18 bound by its license agreement to follow the
:onditions ©f that agreem: "t which clearly called for
libration by radiation source. Calibration by radiation
urce is the method used throughout the nuclear industry

is the only calibration method currently approved by the

LE

taff Motion, Attachment S5, Appendix at 4.
53?&3!! Motion, Attachment 2 at 3-4, and Attachment

35«3
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Commigsion, By its own adnission, AMS failed to follow

license conditions in the calibration of its dosimeters. We
therefore have no alternative than to find AMS in violation
of License Condition No. 16,
111,
The Staff Motion requests the Board's concurrence that
the imposition of a civil penalty of six thousand two
hundred fifty dollars is "consistent with Commission

pelicy."" The Staff has attached to its Motion an

affidavit of James Lieberman, Director of the Office of
Enforcement which explains that the Staff's caiculation of
the amount of the civil penalty is in accordance with the
Comuission's "General Statement of Policy and Procedure for
NRC Enforcement Actions."®® 1In his affidavit, Mr. Lieberman
states that the four viclations are considered collectively
as a Severity Level III vicolation as defined in the Policy
Statement at Section C.4. of Supplement IV and Section C.1.
of Supplement VI. Under Table 1B (Base Civil Penalties for
Severity Levels) the base civil penalty amount for &

Severity Level III vicolation is 50 percent of the amount

"Statt Motion, Attachment 5 at 4.

"Stlft Motion at 11.

%$10 c.F.R. Part 2, Appendix C.
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listed in Table 1A, or in this case, $5,000, Mr., Lieberman

goes on to state:®’

As provided in the Policy [(Stateme:
under Section IV.B.3.,, the base civ..
penalty was increased by 25% in the

June 28, 1985 Proposed Civil Penalties
Notice because of the failure of AMS to
implement previous corrective action for
prior similar problems. Specifically, a
March 1963 inspection resultad in a

July 13, 1983 order Imposing Civil
Monetary Fenalties of $4,000 because of
circumstances surrounding an
overexposure . . ., . in or near the
licensee's hot cell. . . . Those
circumstances were similar to
circumstances described in the June 28,
1985 Notice . . . . and included failure
to follow procedures for checking
dosimeters while working in a high dose
rate area.

The AMS answer does not follow the usual procedural
pleading the Board has seen most often in enforcement
proceedings involving the imposition of civil penalties. It
i8 the case, more often than not, that licensee's counsel
seeks mitigation of the civil penalty.®® 1Instead, AMS
argues that the NRC Staff "erred in considering the alleged

four viclations to be collectively at a Severity Level

"scatt Motion, Affidavit of James Lieberman (attached)
at 2.

500Ms does cite pertions of the Commission's Policy
Statement regarding the imposition of civil penalties which
have bearing on the mitigation of those penalties. However,
no argument is made that these considerations were
improperly overlooked in the Director's decision to impose
the penalties.
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II1 . . . due to the fact that they do not meet any of the
conditions of Severity Level III either collectively or
singularly . . . . [and) would be, at most, lLevel IV, not
Level III [violations)."®’
We have chosen to set out those portions of 10 C.F.R.
Part 2, Appendix C -~ General Statement of Policy and
Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions == in this text
because the language of that Statement leaves no room for
doubt that the Director's decision to levy a Severity Level
II1 viclation finds its foundation in those guidelines:
The following statement of general
poelicy and procedure explains the
enforcement policy and procedures of the
U.8. Nuclear Regulatory Commission and
its staff in initiating enforcement

actions, and of presiding officers . . .
in reviewing these actions. .

*'AM8 Answer at 25, Counsel for AMS mounts this
challenge in a portion of the AMS answer entitled

Vo STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS WHICH ARE IN DISPUIE. AMS
Ansver at 25, Counsel goes on to state:

The basis of Mr., Lieberman's judgement certainly
raises a guestion of material fact. . . . [(E)ven
if the vioclations were properly Level III
violations, James Lieberman's statement that the
imposition of the fine as being in accordance with
10 CFR Part 2, Appendix € . ., . . is a material
fact in dispute."”

AMS Answver at 25-26., If the basis for the Director's
judgement is to be upheld in accordance with Crmmission
regulations, it is clearly a question of law that will
deternine the outcome.
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The purpose of the NRC enforcemant
program is to promote and protect the
radiclogical health and safety of the
public, including employees' health and
safety . . . . by

* Ensuring compliance with NRC
regulations and license conditions; . .

* Deterring future vicolations and
occurrences of conditions adverse to
quality;

* Encouraging improvement of
licensee and vendor performance . . . .

« + + + Each enforcement action is
dependent on the circumstances of the
case and requires the exercise of
discretion after consideration of these
pelicies and procedures. In no case,
however, will licensees who cannot
achieve and maintain adeguate levels of
protection be permitted to conduct
licensed activities.

.. + Severity Level III viclations
Are cause for significant concern.
Severity Level IV violations are less
serious but are of more than minor
concern; i.e., if left uncorrected, they
could lead to a more serious concern.

. . . .

+ + « + While examples are provided in
Supplements I through VIII for
determining the appropriate severity
level for violations in each of the
eight activity areas, the examples are
neither exhaustive nor controlling. . .
+ Each of the examples in the
supplements is predicated on a violation
of a regulatory requirement. . . . In
some cases, violations may be evaluated
in the aggregate and a single severity
level assigned for a group of
violations.
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« + + o+ Civil penalties are designed to
emphasize the need for lasting remedial
action and to deter future viclations. .
« + Civil penalties are proposed absent
mitigating circumstances for Severity
Level 1 and II violations, are
considered for Severity Level III
violations, and may be imposed for
3.vcrit¥ Level IV vicolaticns that are
similar® to previous violations for
which the licensee did not take
effective corrective actio..

‘The word "similar," as used in this
policy, refers to those violations which
could have been reasonably expected to
have been prevented by the licensee's
corrective action for the previous
violation.

NRC reviews each proposed civil
penalty case on its own merits and
adjusts the base civil penalty values
upward or downward appropriately.

Under Appendix C, Supplement IV the Director identified
an example of a Severity Level III violation with
significantly similar, if not identical, circumstances
surrounding the AMS violations of 10 C.F.R., §§ 20.101 and
20,102 regarding adequate radiation surveys and worker
safety:

Substantial potential for an exposure or
release in excess of 10 C.F.R, 20
whether or not such exposure or release

occurs (e.g., entry into high radiation
areas, such as under reactor vessels or
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in the vicinity of exposed radiographic
sources, without having performed an

adequate survey, operation of a
radjation facility méth a nonfunctioning
interlock system);(*Y)

Under Appendix C, Supplement VI the Director identified
another example of a Severity Level III violation that,
while broader in scope than the previous example, is
representative of the licensee's obligation to follow the
express conditions of its materials license agreenent under
10 C.F.R, Part 30 through 3% regarding materials
operntionl:“

Failure to control access to
licensed materials for radiation
purposes as lptfitiod by NRC
requirements;(°“)

%10 ¢.F.R. Part 2, Appendix ¢, Supplement IV ==

Severity Categories, Health Physics 10 C.F.R. Part 20,
§ &.:4:

“IIn this context, 10 C.F.R. 30.34(e) states:

The Commission may incorporate, in any license
issued pursuant to the regulations in this part
and Parts 31 through 35 and 39, at the time of the
issuance, or thereafter by appropriate rule,
regulation or order, such additional requirements
und conditions with respect to the licensee's
receipt, possession, use and transfer or byproduct
material as it deems appropriate or necessary in
order to: . . . ., Protect health or to minimize
danger to life or property,

210 c.F.R. Part 2, Appendix C, Supplement VI -

Severity Categories, Fuel Cycle and Materials Operations,
s Colo
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We see no reason to disturb that portion of the Director's
analysis. Moreover, even if we vere to consider the AMS
viclations to be Severity Level IV violations, the pelicy
guidelines clearly allow the Director the discretion to
impose fines for Level 1V, especially in the case of
repeated violations, as is the case here.*’ The AMS
Argument that its violations amount to "Level IV, not Level
III" vicolations carries no weight. Accordingly, we find the
Director's decision to impose the civil penalty in the
amount of $6,250 to be fully in accordance with Commission
pelicy and see no reason to overturn the decision or to
mitigate the penalty.
Iv.

There remains one matter the Board has decided on its
own to address. Counsel for AMS has argued that "Summary
Dispesition is not the appropriate administrative action to

 neé

take . . Counsel opines that "all interrogatories

[8ic) were conducted in the absence of AMS's Counsel. As

such, AMS has had no opportunity for cross-examination,"®®

Counsel borrows language from Poller v. Columbia

€3)s stated earlier, AMS was fined $4,000 in 1983 for
an overexposure with circumstances similar to the
circumstances occurring in November, 1985.

“Ans Answer at 30,

e5,MS Answer at 11.
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Broadcasting System. Inc., 368 U.5. 464 (1962) to support an

argument that can be interpreted no other way than to imply
that AMS has been denied due process if summary disposition
is granted. A succinct statement from Poller has been used
in the AMS Ansver to illustrate this point:**

Trial by affidavit is no substitute for

trial by jury which so long has been the

hallmark of 'even handed justice',

We do share the same view of sumpary disposition in the
matter before us, for two reasons. First, from the time AMS
petitioned for a hearing on tais matter (June 20, 1989), or
even from the time of the filing of the Staff's Motion
(August 29, 1990) to the time the AMS Answer was submitted
(October 4, 19%0), there was significant passage of time to
engage in voluntary discovery and to solicit interrogatories
and affidavits from the people who would have been nost
informed on the circumstances taking place on the dates in
gquestion. There are many indications that AMS had direct
access to the facts, as it appears Lhat several of the
individuals AMs reiies on to make its case are either AMS
employees or ex-employees located within close proximity to
the AMS facilities. Moreover, even if adversarial posturing
could have inhibited the effectiveness of voluntary

discovery, we find nothing in the Commission's regulations

“*poller, supra 368 U.S. at 473.



i

at would have prohibited Counsel for AMS from petitioning

he Board for formal discovery even prior to a prehearing

4

67
snference.

Second, our reading of Poller shows that case to be
oncerned with issues not present in the case before us ==
remost among them, conspiracy. AMS misguotes from Poller

he exact language that should have alerted Counsel that the

, 68

LOOK at the record on sunmpary
iCgenent in the light nost favorable tc¢
the party opposing the motion,
and conclude here that it should not
have been granted. We bellieve that
summary procedures should be used
sparingly in complex antitrust
litigation where motive and intent play
i88ding roles, the proof i1s largely in
the hands ©of the allegad conspiraters,
and hostile witnesses thicken the plot.
.Emphasis supplied) It is only when the
witnesses are present and subject to
cross-examination that their credibillity
and the weight to be given their
testinony can be appraised.

ne motive or intent at issue here, just facts,
no material factual dispute and the case can be

d 2

ded as a matter of law, no due process has been denied

il -

6

Tw .
'he regulatory prohibition against discovery prior to
a prehearing conference found in 10 C.F.R., § 2.740(b) (1) 1is

4 A

lted tOo "an application for a construction permit or an
cperating license for a production or utilization facility."
GBAHF Ansver at 11, quoting Peoller, supra, 368 U.S. at
473, We note vith disapproval that Counsel for AMS omitted
the Justices' reference to "antitrust" litigation in the
clited paragraph in its Ansver.




V.

For all the foregoing reasons and upon consideration of
the entire record in this matter, it is this 19th day of
March, 1991.

ORDERED

(1) the NRC Staff Motion for Summary Disposition (August 29,
1990) is granted;

(2) Advanced Medical Systems, Inc. of Geneva, Ohio is found
to have violated Commission regulations and license
conditions as those viclations have been set forth in the
Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil
Penalties (June 28, 1988);

(3) the Order Imposing Civil Monuvtary Penalties (May 30,
19689) in the amount of $6,250 issued by the Deputy Executive
Director for Nuclear Materials Safety, Safeguards, and
Operctional Support is sustained; and

(4) there being no additional issJies pending in the matter,
this Civil Penalty proceeding i4 terminated,*®

Pursuant to 10 C.F.R, § 2,762, within ten days after
its service, any party may appeal this Memorandum and Order
by filing a Notice of Appeal wiLh the Commission. Each
appellant shall file a brief supporting its position on
appeal within thirty (20) days, (or within forty (40) days

“*one companion case remains pending:
. (Decontamination Order)
Docket No. 30-16055~0M, ASLBP No. 87-555-01~OM,
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